

Attachment 2
Proposed Revision to University Handbook
Section F62: University Excused Absences
Approved by Academic Affairs
Approved by Faculty Affairs on May 7, 2024

Rationale: The Excused Absence policy has been in place for four years and Student Support and Accountability is the primary office which verifies absences through the policy. Student Support and Accountability regularly meets with students who are experiencing challenging and complex situations with their mental and physical health. Some of these situations have been ongoing for the student and require treatment which may result in specialist appointment(s) which are not easily adjusted to accommodate the student's academic experience. Other times, our students experience a medical emergency which requires an extended stay at a hospital or facility to fully treat them. Presently, these examples are not considered "excused," and we are not able fully support the student to the level which should be expected when caring for our campus community. The two proposed additions will allow the University to support our students more fully through documentable medical situations.

F62 CLASS ATTENDANCE AND COURSEWORK

K-State respects its instructors' need to establish attendance policies for each course and that only through attending class do students receive the fullest educational experience. The K-State attendance policy establishes the following:

- Students are expected to attend class meetings as scheduled.
- Instructors announce their attendance policy at the beginning of the course.
- Excuses for absence from class are handled between the student and instructor, except when other University offices are involved in the approval process, as explained below.
- Students are responsible for all missed learning and coursework stemming from any absence.
- ~~Instructors are responsible for allowing opportunities for students to complete work while missed for an excused absence within a reasonable timeframe.~~

K-State recognizes that activities outside of the classroom also help students achieve success and other circumstances might make an absence necessary. Students' University representation, activities and other circumstances may directly conflict with their presence at scheduled class periods.

This policy establishes that certain absences are University Excused Absences.

When a student provides reasonable advance written documentation of the need for a University Excused Absence, in accordance with the provisions below, **instructors shall provide the opportunity to either make up or excuse, at the instructor's discretion, any missed assignments, activities, and/or attendance-specific points that contribute to the course grade.** The following sections describe common University Excused Absences and corresponding processes.

UNIVERSITY EXCUSED ABSENCES

Extra-Curricular Activities as a Representative of the University

Students may seek to, or be asked to, participate as a Kansas State University representative in credit or non-credit events scheduled by academic or athletic units of the University. Instructors may require students to provide University documentation verifying the University-scheduled activity and the student's representation of the University. When these result in a student missing class, that is a University Excused Absence. Some examples of University Excused Absences within this category are:

- Academic or professional conferences and workshops, including ROTC,
- Intercollegiate athletic, academic, and judging competitions,
- Musical, theatrical, dance and other artistic performances, and
- Presentations or programs given to external audiences.

Please see "ABSENCES EXCUSED AT INSTRUCTOR'S DISCRETION" for extra-curricular activities that are *not* sponsored by a unit of the University.

Military Service

Students performing required National Guard or other United States military service obligations qualify for a University Excused Absence when those obligations require the student to miss class. In cases of annual training or active duty for more than two weeks, the student shall coordinate with their instructors, advisor, and ~~the Office of Student Life~~ [Student Support & Accountability](#) well in advance of such absences, in close temporal proximity to when the student receives the military orders. For more information, see the [Non-Traditional and Veteran Student Services](#) website.

Court Appearances

Students may request a University Excused Absence through [Student Support & Accountability](#) ~~the Office of Student Life~~ when the absence is necessary because of a mandated court appearance or other lawfully mandated appearance. [Student Support & Accountability](#) ~~The Office of Student Life~~ will evaluate the request and determine whether to approve. Instructors are required to adhere to attendance accommodations that are approved by [Student Support & Accountability](#) ~~Office of Student Life~~.

Disability Reasonable Accommodations

Students may request a University Excused Absence through the Student Access Center when the absence is related to disabilities. The Student Access Center, in accordance with applicable laws, will evaluate the request and determine whether to approve. Instructors are required to adhere to attendance accommodations that are approved by the Student Access Center.

Pregnancy, Childbirth, or Adoption

Students may request a University Excused Absence through [Student Support & Accountability](#) ~~the Office of Student Life~~ when the absence is related to pregnancy, false pregnancy, termination of pregnancy, childbirth, or adoption.- [Student Support & Accountability](#) ~~The Office of Student Life~~, in accordance with applicable laws, will evaluate

the request and determine whether to approve. Instructors are required to adhere to attendance accommodations for students that are approved by ~~the Student Support & Accountability Office of Student Life~~.

Religious Observance

Students may request through ~~Student Support & Accountability the Office of Student Life~~ a University Excused Absence to accommodate their religious observances for a sincerely held religious belief in circumstances where class attendance would interfere with the students' ability to practice their religion. ~~Student Support & Accountability The Office of Student Life~~ will evaluate the request and determine whether to approve, in accordance with applicable laws. This means that in evaluating the request, ~~the Student Support & Accountability Office of Student Life~~ will balance the attendance requirement's burden on the student's practice of sincerely-held religious beliefs against any hardship to the University caused by the student's absence. Instructors are required to adhere to attendance accommodations that are approved by ~~the Office of Student Life~~ Student Support & Accountability.

Specialist Appointments

Students may request a University Excused Absence through Student Support and Accountability when the absence is related to an appointment with a medical specialist due to complex, non-routine medical concerns (examples may include appointments with Veteran Affairs, consultations with specialized doctors, etc.). Student Support and Accountability will evaluate the request and determine whether to approve. The student shall coordinate with their instructors, advisor, and Student Support and Accountability in advance of such absences, or in close temporal proximity to when the student receives information regarding the scheduled appointment.

Severe Health Concerns, including Hospitalization

Students may request a University Excused Absence through Student Support and Accountability when the absence is related to a documented severe health concern, including hospitalizations. Student Support and Accountability will evaluate the request and determine the appropriate approval. In cases of extended required absences, the student shall coordinate with their instructors, advisor, and Student Support and Accountability. In the event a student has missed too much work to complete the course successfully, faculty can communicate with Student Support and Accountability to pursue other options, like a late drop, withdrawal, etc.

Weather

The University may cancel classes due to severe weather and will make this known through inclement weather announcements. Absences resulting from cancelled classes and campus closure are University Excused Absences.

Special Programming and Events

The University may cancel classes due to special programming and events and will make this known through University-wide announcements. Absences resulting from cancelled classes are University Excused Absences.

ABSENCES EXCUSED AT INSTRUCTOR'S DISCRETION

K-State recognizes that students may miss class for other reasons and that other absences may be in the best interest of students' academic and professional development. On a case-by-case basis, instructors are encouraged to allow students to make up graded work from an absence.

While not required, students and instructors may also consult ~~-Student Support & Accountability~~[the Office of Student Life](#), Department / Unit Head or Chair, and College Dean's Office for assistance with absences beyond the student's control, but that are not University Excused Absences within this policy, such as when an absence results from a personal emergency, non-disability related health issue, or ~~Affiliated Independent~~[Student Organization \(ISO\)](#)-related participation.

In the case of a disagreement with the instructor, students are encouraged to contact the Department / Unit Head or Chair, and College Dean's Office.

EXCEPTIONS TO THE UNIVERSITY EXCUSED ABSENCE POLICY

A limited number of programs across campus have strict attendance policies to achieve programmatic accreditation. In all such cases, students and faculty shall adhere to the programmatic attendance policies in place in those units.

F63 Class dismissal. Each year Kansas State University schedules and sponsors various convocations, lectures, and similar functions considered to be of significant educational value to students and faculty. The determination of whether or not to dismiss classes to allow students to attend these events is made by the class instructor.